

**LODGE BY-LAWS
LODGE STANDING ORDERS
AND
NORWAY HALL CORPORATION
BY-LAWS**

**SONS OF NORWAY
NORRØNA LODGE 6-50
VAN NUYS, CALIFORNIA**



Revised
September 11, 2011

NORRØNA LODGE 6-50
SONS OF NORWAY

LODGE BY-LAWS

Revised
September 11, 2011

**NORRØNA LODGE 6-50
SONS OF NORWAY**

LODGE BY-LAWS

ARTICLE O. BY-LAW PRECEDENCE

(a) These Local Lodge By-Laws are prepared in accordance with the current Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures for Local Lodges. If any conflict exists between these by-laws and the Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures, the Constitution and Procedures shall take precedence.

ARTICLE I. NAME AND MEETINGS

SECTION 1. NAME

(a) NAME. The name of this Lodge shall be “Norrøna Lodge 6-50, Sons of Norway”, a California nonprofit 501(c) (8) corporation hereinafter referred to as “The Lodge”.

SECTION 2. MEETINGS

(a) REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING. A regular business meeting of The Lodge shall be held on the fourth Friday of the month at a time and place approved by The Lodge members. At least 8 business meetings shall be held each year.

(b) REGULAR SOCIAL MEETING. A regular social meeting of The Lodge shall be held on the second Saturday of the month at a time and place approved by The Lodge members.

(c) SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of The Lodge may be called by the President at his/her discretion in accordance with the Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures.

(d) CHANGE OF MEETINGS. Any permanent change of a regular scheduled meeting date, time or place shall require approval by a two-thirds majority vote of the members present and voting at a regular business meeting. Members shall be notified in writing or by means of a special notice in the Lodge publication when such a change is to be considered.

Any temporary change of a specific meeting date, time, or place or a meeting cancellation shall require approval by a majority vote of the members present and voting. Notice of such change shall be published in the Lodge publication prior to the date of the meeting so affected by this action.

ARTICLE II. OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. ELECTED OFFICERS

(a) ELECTED OFFICERS. The elected officers of the Lodge shall be President, Vice President, Counselor, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Membership Secretary, Assistant Membership Secretary, Treasurer, Social Director, Marshal, Assistant Marshal, two Greeters, three Trustees, and three Auditors. All other officers of The Lodge shall be appointed by the Lodge Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. ELECTION AND TERM

(a) Officers of The Lodge shall be elected for a term of two (2) years. Election of officers shall be held in every even year. Election of officers shall take place at a regular business meeting no later than November of each even year.

SECTION 3. LODGE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) The Board of Directors of The Lodge shall consist of the following elected officers: President, Vice-President, Counselor, Secretary, Treasurer, Membership Secretary and Social Director.

ARTICLE III. ADMISSION OF NEW MEMBERS

(a) APPLICATION. Any person who desires to become a member of Sons of Norway and satisfies the requirements for membership as defined in the Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures shall be considered a member

of Norrøna Lodge 6-50. Applications for membership may also be received directly from International Headquarters.

(b) APPROVAL. The application shall be presented to the lodge members at the next regular business meeting of the Lodge. Membership shall become effective in accordance with the Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures for Local Lodges.

ARTICLE IV. FEES AND DUES

SECTION 1. APPLICATION FEE

(a) APPLICATION FEE. The application fee shall be waived for all new membership applications.

SECTION 2. DUES

(a) DUES. The Local Lodge portion of the dues shall be determined by a two-thirds majority vote of the members present and voted on at a regular business meeting of The Lodge.

(b) PAYMENT OF DUES. Dues shall be paid directly to the International Headquarters by each member.

ARTICLE V. LODGE FUNDS

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

(a) OPERATING EXPENSES. Appropriation of lodge funds to pay routine Lodge operating expenses up to \$500.00 shall be at the discretion of the lodge Treasurer. Appropriation of lodge funds for operating expenses in

excess of \$500.00 shall require the approval of the lodge President.

(b) OTHER APPROPRIATIONS. Appropriation of lodge funds for all expenditures, other than operating expenses, in excess of \$2500.00 shall first require the approval of the Board of Directors and followed by a two-thirds majority vote of those members present and voting at a regular business meeting.

(c) ADVANCE OF FUNDS. Funds may be advanced to any appointed committee within The Lodge to support lodge activities. Advance of funds shall require approval by a majority vote of the Lodge Board of Directors.

(d) GENERAL FUND. The Lodge shall maintain a general fund to provide for the day-to-day routine operating expenses and other expenditures authorized by The Lodge.

(e) EMERGENCY EXPENSES. Appropriation of Lodge funds needed for an unanticipated emergency shall require special authorization by either the lodge President or the Norway Hall President. This emergency appropriation shall be reported to the membership at the next regular business meeting.

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVENESS OF BY-LAWS

SECTION 1. BY-LAW EFFECTIVE ACTION

(a) EFFECTIVE ACTION. By-laws and any by-law revisions shall become effective only upon the approval of the membership in accordance with the requirements of the

Sons of Norway Constitution and Procedures of Local Lodges.

(b) APPROVAL BY OFFICERS These revised by-laws were approved by the following officers of the lodge:

Ole Olson, Jr., President
Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway
TBD, 2011

Irene Brandies, Secretary
Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway
TBD, 2011

(c) APPROVAL BY MEMBERSHIP These revised by-laws were reviewed and approved by the lodge membership at the regular business meeting on TBD, 2011

(d) APPROVAL BY SONS OF NORWAY INTERNATIONAL. These revised by-laws were reviewed and approved by Sons of Norway International as confirmed by letter dated (TBD).

David Ness
General Counsel
Sons of Norway International
TBD, 2011

(e) EFFECTIVE DATE These by-laws shall become effective on January 1, 2012.

(f) BY-LAWS COMMITTEE
Gerald L. Rowe
Gary S. Thorpe

NORRØNA LODGE 6-50
SONS OF NORWAY

LODGE STANDING ORDERS

Revised
September 14, 2011

**NORRØNA LODGE 6-50
SONS OF NORWAY**

LODGE STANDING ORDERS

ARTICLE O. STANDING ORDER AUTHORITY

(a) These Standing Orders are prepared in accordance with the policies and procedures of Sons of Norway Norrøna Lodge #50 that have been established and approved by the lodge members at the regular business meetings of The Lodge.

ARTICLE I. STANDING ORDERS

STANDING ORDER 1. MEETINGS

(a) **REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING.** The regular business meeting of The Lodge shall be held on the fourth Friday of each month at Norway Hall. Regular meeting times shall be as approved by the membership and published in the lodge monthly bulletin. There shall be no business meeting in the months of July, August and December.

(b) **POTLUCK DINNER.** A potluck dinner shall precede the regular business meeting at the time approved by the membership and published in the lodge monthly bulletin.

(c) **REGULAR SOCIAL MEETING.** A regular social meeting of The Lodge shall be held on the second Saturday of the month at Norway Hall. There shall be no social

meeting in the months of July and August. Social meeting times shall be as approved by the membership and published in the lodge monthly bulletin. The cost of the social meeting and dinner shall be as determined by the lodge board of directors.

(d) **BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING.** A regular meeting of the lodge Board of Directors shall be held at least twice each year. These meetings shall be called by the President at his/her discretion. The President shall notify all members of the Board of Directors of the time and place of the next meeting and shall also notify, upon request, any lodge member interested in attending.

(e) **SPECIAL MEETINGS.** Special meetings of The Lodge may be called by the President at his discretion and shall be held at Norway Hall at a time and date determined by the President. It shall be the duty of the President to notify the membership of these meetings.

(f) **LODGE PICNIC.** A lodge picnic shall be held in July and/or August of each year in place of the regular social meeting(s). The time and place of the lodge picnic shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors and published in the lodge monthly bulletin.

STANDING ORDER 2. MEMBERSHIP

(a) **NEW MEMBER BADGES.** Each new member may order a name badge from the lodge at a cost of \$7.00. It is encouraged that this badge be worn at Sons of Norway functions.

(b) MEMBERSHIP PINS. The lodge shall provide membership pins to each new member. Service pins shall be provided to members for each 5 years of active membership.

STANDING ORDER 3. DUES

(a) LODGE DUES. The annual lodge dues, including International and District dues, shall be in accordance with policies set forth in the Sons of Norway Constitution.

(b) ALLOCATION OF DUES. Each active member of the Local Lodge shall pay in advance, to the Sons of Norway Headquarters, three categories of dues: international and district dues set by and determined by their respective directors and Local Lodge dues determined and approved by a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting at a local lodge business meeting in accordance with the Sons of Norway Constitution.

STANDING ORDER 4. LUTEFISK DINNER

(a) LUTEFISK DINNER. The Lodge shall serve a lutefisk dinner in November of each year, at a time and date established by the lodge Board of Directors. The cost of the lutefisk dinner shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors.

STANDING ORDER 5. COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS.

(a) COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS. Norrøna Lodge 6-50 is a non-profit fraternal organization and the officers of the Lodge are elected by the membership and serve without compensation except for the Treasurer who shall be paid \$50.00 per month for financial services and tax preparation.

(b) COMPENSATION OF LODGE CARETAKER. The lodge caretaker shall be compensated by the lodge for services performed. Caretaker duties and compensation are determined by the Norway Hall Board of Directors.

STANDING ORDER 6. SPECIAL COMMITTEES AND OFFICERS

The following special committees and officers may be appointed by the lodge Board of Directors when they are needed.

COMMITTEE/OFFICER	DUTIES
AUDIO/VIDEO	Maintain and operate the audio and video equipment of the lodge. Operate the equipment at regular and special events for the good of the order.
BYLAWS - STANDING ORDERS	Edit and revise the lodge by-laws and standing orders when changes are

	made and approved by the membership. Coordinate and obtain approval from the International Lodge when needed.
CULTURAL	Plan and conduct the cultural activities of the lodge.
ENTERTAINMENT	Plan and arrange for entertainment at lodge functions.
HISTORIAN	Keep historical records of lodge activities.
LIBRARIAN	Organize and maintain the lodge library.
LODGE DIRECTORY EDITOR	Edit and publish the lodge yearbook.
MUSICIAN	Provide music at lodge business meetings.
NEWSLETTER	Edit and publish the lodge newsletter.
NORWAY HALL	Acquire and manage real estate and all other physical property of The Lodge.
PHOTOGRAPHER	Take pictures of lodge activities and provide copies to the publicity director.
PUBLICITY	Publicize lodge activities. Send articles on lodge activities to the

	6th District Publicity Director for publication in the Viking magazine.
REFRESHMENTS	Provide refreshments at lodge activities when needed.
SCHOLARSHIP	Conduct a scholarship program to select candidates and grant scholarships.
SONS OF NORWAY FOUNDATION	Provide information on the Sons of Norway Foundation activities and outreach programs. Conduct fund raising activities in support of the foundation.
SOCIAL	Plan and conduct the social activities of the lodge.
SUNSHINE	Contact lodge members who are ill and report on their condition at lodge meetings.
TUBFRIM	Collect and send used postage stamps to the Sons of Norway TUBFRIM organization.

STANDING ORDER 7. CAMP NORGE LANGUAGE-HERITAGE SCHOLARSHIP

(a) **CAMP NORGE LANGUAGE-HERITAGE SCHOLARSHIP.** The lodge shall sponsor up to 6 children or grandchildren of lodge members to the annual Camp Norge Heritage Camp in Alta, CA. Children and grandchildren between the ages of 8 and 12 living in District 6 and sponsored by lodge members in good standing are eligible for this scholarship. Children receiving this scholarship for the first time shall have priority and receive a full scholarship. All other sponsored children shall receive half scholarships. If a scholarship is granted and paid for by the lodge but not used, the recipient shall return all scholarship monies received.

STANDING ORDER 8. ORGANIZATIONS SUPPORTED BY THE LODGE

(a) **ORGANIZATIONS SUPPORTED.** The lodge supports other charitable and fraternal nonprofit organizations. The financial support for each of these organization(s) shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors and approved by the membership at a regular business meeting.

STANDING ORDER 9. NORWAY HALL RENTAL

(a) NORWAY HALL RENTAL. Norway Hall may be rented to qualified Norrøna Lodge 6-50 members and other organizations for the good of the order. The rental of Norway Hall is under the direction of the Norway Hall Board of Directors who administers the Norway Hall rental policy and shall determine the qualifications and suitability of rental requests.

(b) NORWAY HALL RENTAL BY THE LODGE. The lodge shall pay a monthly rental fee to Norway Hall in an amount determined by the Board of Directors and approved by the membership at a regular business meeting.

STANDING ORDER 10. INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS

(a) Installation of officers shall be held at the Lodge Social meeting in the January following the general election of officers.

STANDING ORDER 11. ELECTION OF DELEGATES

(a) The election of Delegates to the District Six Convention shall take place at the January meeting of the Convention year.

STANDING ORDER 12. COMPENSATION OF DELEGATES

Compensation of delegates for the District Six Convention shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors and approved by the membership at a regular business meeting.

STANDING ORDER 13. DONATIONS

(a) DECEASED MEMBERS. The Lodge may make a donation of \$25.00 to the District 6 Scholarship fund in the name of a deceased member.

(b) DISTRICT 6 LODGE ANNIVERSARIES. Any donations for lodge anniversaries shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors and approved by the membership at a regular business meeting.

(c) INAUGURATION OF NEW DISTRICT 6 LODGES. Any donations for new District 6 lodges shall be determined by the lodge Board of Directors and approved by the membership at a regular business meeting.

ARTICLE II. APPROVALS

(a) **APPROVAL BY OFFICERS** These Standing Orders were approved by the following officers of the lodge:

Ole Olson, Jr., President
Norrøna Lodge 6-50
Sons of Norway
TBD

Irene Brandies, Secretary
Norrøna Lodge 6-50
Sons of Norway
TBD

(b) **APPROVAL BY MEMBERSHIP.** These Standing Orders were approved by the lodge membership at the regular business meeting on TBD.

(c) **EFFECTIVE DATE.** These Standing Orders shall become effective on January 1, 2012.

(d) **REVISIONS.** Revisions to these Standing Orders shall become effective on the date that they are approved by the membership. Such revisions shall be incorporated into this publication as needed.

(e) **STANDING ORDERS COMMITTEE**
Gerald L. Rowe
Gary S. Thorpe

NORRØNA LODGE #50
SONS OF NORWAY
INCORPORATED

CORPORATION BY-LAWS

Revised
September 15, 2011

**NORRØNA LODGE #50 SONS OF NORWAY
INCORPORATED
A NON-PROFIT CORPORATION
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA**

NORWAY HALL BY-LAWS

**ARTICLE O. NORWAY HALL BY-LAW
PRECEDENCE**

(a) Norway Hall By-Laws are prepared in accordance with the Sons of Norway Constitution of Local Lodges Chapter 17, paragraph 4.17.1 “Financial Administration, Investments and Real Estate Holdings” for the holding of property and real estate by the Local Lodge. These by-laws are a supplement to the Sons of Norway Constitution. If any conflict exists between these by-laws and the Sons of Norway Constitution, The Constitution shall take precedence.

ARTICLE I. ORGANIZATION AND OFFICERS

SECTION 1. NAME AND ORGANIZATION

(a) NAME. The official name of the Committee in charge of all real estate property and all other physical property of The Lodge shall be hereinafter known as Norway Hall.

(b) MEMBERSHIP. Norway Hall membership shall consist of all of the members of Norrøna Lodge #50, Sons of

Norway, an incorporated association. Membership privileges and the right to hold office in Norway Hall shall be contingent upon the member maintaining membership in good standing of The Lodge. Failure to do so will immediately terminate the membership and/or officer status within Norway Hall.

(c) OBJECTIVE AND PURPOSE. The purpose of Norway Hall shall be in accordance with the Sons of Norway Constitution.

SECTION 2. OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

(a) OFFICERS. The officers of Norway Hall shall consist of President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.

(b) ELECTION OF OFFICERS. Officers of Norway Hall shall be elected for a two (2) year term from the members of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall at its biennial meeting held in February of each even calendar year.

SECTION 3. DIRECTORS OF THE CORPORATION

(a) BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Board of Directors of Norway Hall shall consist of six (6) directors at large elected from the Lodge membership, the lodge Vice-President, and the three (3) lodge Trustees. The Board of Directors of Norway Hall shall manage and control the real property and all other property of The Lodge. The Board of Directors of Norway Hall shall be responsible to all of the members of The Lodge for their actions.

(b) **ELECTION OF DIRECTORS.** The Directors at Large of Norway Hall shall be elected for a term of two (2) years or until their successors are elected and installed. Election of Directors at Large shall be held in every even calendar year at the same time and place as the election of the officers of The Lodge.

(c) **INSTALLATION OF DIRECTORS.** The newly elected Directors of Norway Hall are to be installed at the same time and place as the officers of The Lodge.

(d) **TRUSTEES OF THE LODGE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORWAY HALL.** The three (3) trustees of The Lodge elected by The Lodge are automatically members of the Board of Directors of The Corporation.

(e) **LODGE VICE PRESIDENT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORWAY HALL.** The Lodge Vice President shall automatically be a member of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall.

SECTION 4. VACANCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) **AUTOMATIC RESIGNATION.** The absence of any member of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall from three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall will constitute an automatic resignation of that Director.

(b) **FILLING OF VACANCIES.** Whenever a vacancy on the Board of Directors of Norway Hall occurs, caused by resignation or death, The Lodge shall elect a new director from the members of The Lodge to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term.

SECTION 5. ELECTION CREDENTIALS

(a) **CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION OR CREDENTIALS.** The Secretary of The Lodge shall forward to the Secretary of Norway Hall a Certificate of Election or Credentials for the elected directors who are to serve on Norway Hall.

SECTION 6. EXECUTIVE BOARD OF NORWAY HALL

(a) **EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS.** The Executive Board of Norway Hall shall consist of a President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.

(b) **EXECUTIVE BOARD QUORUM.** Any three (3) members of the Executive Board of Norway Hall shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Executive Board of Norway Hall.

ARTICLE II. MEETINGS OF NORWAY HALL

SECTION 1. BIENNIAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS OF NORWAY HALL

(a) BIENNIAL MEETING. The biennial meeting of Norway Hall shall be held in February of each even calendar year at a time, date, and place within the city of Los Angeles, to be designated by the newly elected President of The Lodge. The President of The Lodge shall preside at the biennial meeting of Norway Hall until the new President of Norway Hall is elected.

(b) REGULAR MEETING. A regular meeting of Norway Hall shall be held on the first Wednesday of each month at a time and place approved by majority vote of the Board of Directors.

(c) NORWAY HALL MEETING QUORUM. Any five (5) members of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of Norway Hall.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS OF NORWAY HALL

(a) SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of Norway Hall or the Executive Board of Norway Hall may be called by the President of Norway Hall when deemed necessary. It shall be the duty of the President of Norway Hall to call a Special Meeting if a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall forward a demand in writing for such a Special Meeting. Each director must be notified

of the time and place and purpose of such Special Meeting by mail or by telephone not less than three (3) days prior to the holding of said Special Meeting.

(b) MEMBERSHIP ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS. Any member of The Lodge may be present at any meeting of Norway Hall and may present any topic for discussion. The President of Norway Hall, upon request, shall provide to any member of The Lodge the date, time, and place of the next meeting of Norway Hall.

(c) DECISIONS OF NORWAY HALL. All decisions of Norway Hall shall be binding unless appealed to the membership of The Lodge.

ARTICLE III. DUTIES OF OFFICERS OF NORWAY HALL

SECTION 1. PRESIDENT

(a) DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT. The President of Norway Hall shall perform the following duties:

1. Preside at all meetings of Norway Hall and the Executive Board of Norway Hall.
2. Call all meetings of Norway Hall provided for in these By-Laws.
3. Appoint all standing committees of Norway Hall.
4. Exercise general supervision over the affairs of Norway Hall.
5. Be custodian of the keys to The Lodge and all other real properties.

6. Report at the November meeting of The Lodge the status of the accounts and general concerns of Norway Hall during the previous year and provide any estimates and recommendations for the ensuing year as may be deemed appropriate.
7. Be ex-officio member of all committees of Norway Hall.
8. Countersign all checks issued by the Treasurer for Norway Hall.

SECTION 2. VICE PRESIDENT

(a) **DUTIES OF THE VICE-PRESIDENT OF NORWAY HALL.** The Vice President of Norway Hall shall perform the following duties:

1. Assist the President at all meetings of Norway Hall.
2. Preside at all meetings of Norway Hall when the President is absent.
3. Perform all the duties of the President of Norway Hall when the President of Norway Hall is prevented from acting.

SECTION 3. SECRETARY

(a) **DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY OF NORWAY HALL.** The Secretary of Norway Hall shall perform the following duties:

1. Keep an accurate record of all the proceedings of Norway Hall and the Executive Board of Norway Hall.
2. Have custody of the books, papers, and documents of Norway Hall.
3. Attend to all of the official correspondence of Norway Hall.
4. Keep an accurate attendance record of the directors of Norway Hall at each meeting of Norway Hall and report to the President of Norway Hall.

SECTION 4. TREASURER

(a) **DUTIES OF THE TREASURER OF NORWAY HALL.** The Treasurer of Norway Hall shall perform the following duties:

1. Receive all monies on behalf of Norway Hall and deposit same in the bank accounts of Norway Hall or as directed by the Board of Directors of Norway Hall.
2. Keep all financial records of Norway Hall.
3. Issue and sign all checks as directed by the Directors of Norway Hall and have them countersigned by the President or the Vice President of Norway Hall.
4. Shall, if requested by Norway Hall, file such surety bond as may be necessary to insure faithful handling and accounting for all of the funds of Norway Hall.
5. Perform such other duties as may be requested by the Directors of Norway Hall.

6. Shall in January of each year make a complete financial statement of the activities of The Norway Hall for the preceding year and report same to the membership of The Lodge and to The Lodge auditing committee of The Lodge.

SECTION 5. SIGNATURE OF CHECKS OF NORWAY HALL

(a) CHECK SIGNATURES. All checks of Norway Hall shall be signed by the Treasurer of Norway Hall and countersigned by the President or the Vice President of Norway Hall.

ARTICLE IV. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS OF NORWAY HALL

SECTION 1. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS OF NORWAY HALL

(a) REMOVAL. The Directors of Norway Hall may by a majority vote remove from office any Director of Norway Hall for reasons of incompetence, insubordination, embezzlement, or neglect of official duties. Before such a vote is taken, a written complaint against the Director of Norway Hall must have been presented to the Board of Directors of Norway Hall and the Director concerned must have been given an opportunity to respond to the complaint.

ARTICLE V. BY-LAW REVISION

SECTION 1. BY-LAW REPEAL OR AMENDMENT

(a) REPEAL OR AMENDMENT. By-Laws of Norway Hall may be repealed, amended, or changed with the approval of the Board of Directors of Norway Hall. Proposals for repeal, amendment or change of the By-Laws of Norway Hall shall be presented to the membership of The Lodge in writing at a regular meeting of The Lodge but shall not be acted upon before the following regular meeting of The Lodge. A two-thirds majority of the members of The Lodge present and voting is required for any repeal, amendment or change of the By-Laws of Norway Hall.

SECTION 2. NOTICE TO MEMBERS OF THE LODGE OF NORWAY HALL BY-LAW CHANGE(S)

(a) NOTICE. Notice of intent to repeal, amend, or change the By-Laws of Norway Hall shall be sent to the Secretary of The Lodge prior to the next regular meeting of The Lodge and forwarded to all members of the Lodge by letter or by special notice in the Lodge publication citing the date and time that such action is to be considered and acted upon.

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVENESS OF BY-LAWS OF NORWAY HALL

Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway
TBD

SECTION 1. NORWAY HALL BY-LAW EFFECTIVE ACTION

(a) EFFECTIVE ACTION. By-Laws of Norway Hall and any Norway Hall By-Law revisions shall become effective only upon consent and approval of the membership of The Lodge.

Irene Brandies, Lodge Secretary
Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway
TBD

(b) APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORWAY HALL. These revised By-Laws of Norway Hall were reviewed and approved by the Norway Hall Board of Directors at the regular Board of Directors meeting of Norway Hall on TBD.

(d) APPROVAL BY SONS OF NORWAY INTERNATIONAL. These revised By-Laws of Norway Hall were reviewed and approved by Sons of Norway International as confirmed by letter dated TBD.

TBD, General Counsel
Sons of Norway International
TBD

Harold Barhke, Norway Hall President
Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway, Inc.
TBD

(e) EFFECTIVE DATE. These By-Laws and By-Law revisions of Norway Hall shall become effective on TBD.

Gary S. Thorpe, Norway Hall Secretary
Norrøna Lodge #50
Sons of Norway Inc.
TBD

(f) BY-LAWS COMMITTEE
Gerald L. Rowe
Gary S. Thorpe

(c) APPROVAL BY THE LODGE. These revised By-Laws of Norway Hall were reviewed and approved by The Lodge at the regular meeting on TBD.

Ole Olson, Jr., Lodge President